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1965/3S 

THE SOUTII OTAGO MILK DISTRICT ORDER 1965 

BERNARD FERGUSSON, Governor-General 

ORDER IN COUNCIL 

At the Government Buildings at Wellington this 8th day of March 1965 

Present: 
THE RIGHT HON. KEITH HOLYOAKE, C.H., PRESIDING IN COUNCIL 

PURSUANT to the Milk Act 1944, His Excellency the Governor-General, 
acting by and with the advice and consent of the Executive Council, 
hereby makes the following order. 

ORDER 

1. (1) This order may be cited as the South Otago Milk District 
Order 1965. 

(2) This order shall come into force on the day after the date of its 
notification in the Gazette. 

2. The South Otago Milk District, now constituted by the South Otago 
Milk District Order 1959,* shall hereafter consist of the areas described 
in the Schedule hereto; and the boundaries of the said district shall be 
those specified in that Schedule. 

3. The South Otago Milk District Order 1959 is hereby revoked. 

SCHEDULE 

THE Soum OTAGO MILK DISTRICT 
THE Boroughs of Balclutha, Kaitangata, and Milton as from time to 
time constituted: 

Also part of Clutha County, being the Town of Clinton and Section 
79, Block IX, Pomahaka Survey District: 

Also part of Clutha County, being all that area within a circle of 
radius half a mile and with the Owaka Post Office as centre: 

Also part of Bruce County bounded by a line commencing at the 
northernmost corner of Section 24, Block XVII, Town of Balclutha; 
thence south-easterly along the north-eastern boundary of that Section 
24 to the Dunedin-Gore State Highway; thence generally north-easterly 
along the north-western side of that highway to a point in line with 
the northern side of Benhar Road; thence easterly along the northern 

*S.R. 1959/22 
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SCHEDULE-continued 

side of Benhar Road to and north-easterly along the north-western 
boundary of Section 7, Block I, Hillend Survey District, for a distance 
of 2500 links; thence south-easterly along a line, at right angles to 
that boundary, to the Main South Railway; thence south-westerly 
along the north-western side of that railway to the north-eastern 
boundary of Block XII, North Molyneux Survey District; thence 
south-easterly along that boundary to the northernmost corner of 
Section 5, Block XII aforesaid; thence south-westerly along the north­
western boundary of that Section 5 and its production to the Matau 
Branch of the Clutha River; thence generally north-westerly along 
the northern bank of the Matau Branch to a point in line with 
the north-eastern boundary of Section 7, Block XIII, North Molyneux 
Survey District; thence north-westerly to and along that boundary 
and its production to the Matau Branch; thence north-westerly along 
the north-eastern bank of that branch and the Clutha River to the 
south-eastern boundary of the Borough of Balclutha; thence generally 
north-easterly along that boundary to the point of commencement: 

Also part of Bruce County, being all that area between lines 
parallel to the Dunedin-Gore State Highway and distant 5 chains 
from it on both sides extending from the Borough of Milton as far as 
the Clarendon Railway Station: 

Also part of Bruce County being all that area adjoining the Borough 
of Milton bounded by a line commencing at the intersection of 
Springfield and Cemetery Roads; then south-westerly along the south­
eastern boundary of Cemetery Road and its production to the Toko­
mairiro River; thence north-westerly up the left bank of the said river 
to the south-western boundary of Milton Borough; thence generally 
north-easterly along that boundary to Springfield Road; thence 
south-easterly along the north-eastern boundary of that road to the 
point of commencement. 

As the same are delineated on the plan marked N.Z.M.B. 231/1, 
deposited in the office of the New Zealand Milk Board, Public Trust 
Office Building, at Dunedin, and thereon edged green. 

Also all that area in the Otago Land District, Clutha County, 
being the Kaka Point County Town, bounded by a line commencing 
at the northernmost corner of Lot 5, D.P. 3882, in Block 11, South 
Molyneux Survey District, and proceeding north-westerly and north­
easterly along the south-western and north-western boundaries of Lot 
2, D.P. 9226, and the production of the last-mentioned boundary to 
the north-eastern boundary of that part of Section 3, Block 11 afore­
said, comprised in certificate of title 243/288; thence south-easterly 
along that north-eastern boundary to the westernmost corner of Lot 
28, Deeds Plan 254; thence north-easterly along the north-western 
boundaries of Lots 28, 27, 26, 25, and 24, Deeds Plan 254, and the 
production of the last-mentioned boundary to the south-western 
boundary of that part of Section 3, Block 11 aforesaid, comprised 
in certificate of title 243/264; thence north-westerly along that south­
western boundary and north-easterly along the north-western boundary 
of that certificate of title 243/264 to the south-western boundary of 
Section 2, Block II aforesaid; thence south-easterly along that south­
western boundary and its production to the south-eastern side of 
a road adjoining the Pacific Ocean; thence generally south-easterly 
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SCHEDULE-continued 

and south-westerly along the generally north-eastern and south-eastern 
sides of that road and the south-eastern side of the Esplanade to the 
south-western boundary of the South Molyneux Survey District; thence 
north-westerly along that south-western boundary to a line parallel 
to and distant 1100 links north-westwards of the north-western side 
of Miro Street; thence north-easterly along that line to a point in 
line with the production of the south-western side of Totara Street; 
thence south-easterly to the westernmost corner of Totara Street; 
thence north-easterly along the north-western side of that street and 
the north-western boundaries of Lot 60, D.P. 1183, and Lot 4, D.P. 
3882, and the production of the last-mentioned boundary to the south­
western boundary of Lot 5, D.P. 3882; thence north-westerly along 
that south-western boundary and north-easterly along the north-western 
boundary of that Lot 5 to the point of commencement: 

And also that area in the Otago Land District, Bruce County, 
bounded by a line commencing at the southernmost corner of Section 
50, Barnego Settlement, situated in Block n, HilIend Survey District, 
and proceeding generally north-westerly along the left (north­
eastern) bank of the Clutha River to a point in line with the north­
western side of the Greenfield-Clydevale Road; thence north-easterly 
to and along the north-western side of that road and its production 
to a line distant 5 chains north-eastwards of the north-eastern side 
of the BalcIutha-Lawrence Road; thence generally south-easterly along 
that line to the north-western side of Johnson Road; thence generally 
easterly along the northern side of that road to the north-western 
corner of the BalcIutha Borough boundary; thence southerly along 
that boundary to the left (north) bank of the Clutha River; thence 
generally south-westerly along the left bank of that river to the point 
of commencement. 

T. J. SHERRARD, 
Clerk of the Executive Council. 

EXPLANATORY NOTE 
This note is not part 0/ the order, but is intended to indicate its general effect. 
This order redefines the South Otago Milk District so as to make it clear 

that the milk district includes the townships of Kaka Point and Clydevale. 
The Milk Authority for the district is the South Otago MrIk Board constituted 
by the South Otago Milk Board Constitution Order 1952 (Gazette 1952 Vo!. I 
p. 716). • • , 

Issued under the authority of the Regulations Act 1936. 
Date of notification in Gazette: 11 March 1965. 
These regul'ations are admini'stered in the Department of Agri'CulttlTP 


